Notice of Meeting

Resources and Performance Select
Committee
Date & time
Wednesday, 13 July
2022 at 10.00 am

Place
Council Chamber
Woodhatch Place
11 Cockshot Hill
Reigate
Surrey, RH2 8EF

Contact
Kunwar Khan, Scrutiny
Officer
Tel: 07988 522219

Chief Executive
Joanna Killian
We’re on Twitter:
@SCCdemocracy

kunwar.khan@surreycc.gov.uk

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in
another format, e.g. large print or braille, or another language
please either email kunwar.khan@surreycc.gov.uk or call 07988
522219.
This meeting will be held in public. If you would like to attend and you
have any special requirements, please contact Kunwar Khan, Scrutiny
Officer on 07988 522219.
Elected Members
Ayesha Azad (Woking South-West) (Vice-Chairman), Nick Darby (The Dittons) (Chairman), Will
Forster (Woking South) (Vice-Chairman), David Harmer (Waverley Western Villages), Edward
Hawkins (Heatherside & Parkside), Robert Hughes (Shere), Robert King (Egham), Steven
McCormick (Epsom Town and Downs), Tony Samuels (Walton South & Oatlands), Lance
Spencer (Goldsworth East & Horsell Village), Lesley Steeds (Lingfield), Hazel Watson (Dorking
Hills) and Jeremy Webster (Caterham Hill)
TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Committee is responsible for the following areas:












Finance
Orbis Partnership Functions
HR&OD
IT and Digital
Business Ops
Property
Procurement
Equalities and Diversity
Internal/External Communications
Legal and Democratic Services
Customer Services

Page 1 of 4

AGENDA

1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

Purpose of the item:
To receive any apologies for absence and substitutions.
2

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS: 14 APRIL 2022

Purpose of the item:
To agree the minutes of the Resources and Performance Select
Committee held on 14 April 2022 as a true and accurate record of
proceedings.
3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Purpose of the item:
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the
meeting or as soon as possible thereafter:
I.

Any disclosable pecuniary interests and/or

II.

Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect
of any item(s) of business being considered at this meeting.

NOTES:

4



Members are reminded that they must not participate in any
item where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest.



As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any
interest, of which the Member is aware, that relates to the
Member’s spouse or civil partner (or any person with whom
the Member is living as a spouse or civil partner).



Members with a significant personal interest may participate
in the discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest
could be reasonably regarded as prejudicial.

QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS

Purpose of the item:
To receive any questions or petitions.
NOTES:
1. The deadline for Members’ questions is 12:00pm four
working days before the meeting (7 July 2022).

Page 2 of 4

(Pages 5
- 14)

2. The deadline for public questions is seven days before the
meeting (6 July 2022).
3. The deadline for petitions was 14 days before the meeting,
and no petitions have been received.
5

CUSTOMER SERVICES UPDATE

(Pages
15 - 24)

Purpose of the item:
To provide an update on the Council’s Customer Services operation
following recommendations made by the Customer Experience Task
Group.
6

UPDATE ON THE ROLL OUT OF DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE IN
SURREY

(Pages
25 - 34)

Purpose of the item:
To provide an update on the delivery of improvements to digital
infrastructure across Surrey, including changes introduced by
Central Government to the way in which public subsidy is
administered to support digital connectivity. This update report
focuses on those interventions which will drive the greatest
improvement in connectivity, in what is a complex system for the
delivery and operation of broadband, 4G Long Term Evolution
(Lte)/5G and other wireless technologies.
7

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME AND RECOMMENDATION
TRACKER

Purpose of the item:
For the Select Committee to review the attached Forward Work
Programme and Recommendation Tracker, making suggestions for
additions or amendments as appropriate.
8

DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Resources and Performance Select
Committee will be held on 7 October at 10:00am.

Page 3 of 4

(Pages
35 - 48)

Joanna Killian
Chief Executive
Published: Tuesday, 5 July 2022
MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE
Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of
the meeting.
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings with the
Chairman’s consent. Please liaise with the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start
of the meeting so that the Chairman can grant permission and those attending the meeting can
be made aware of any filming taking place.
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to
no interruptions, distractions or interference, or any general disturbance to proceedings. The
Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be switched off in these circumstances.
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions.
Thank you for your co-operation
FIELD_TITLE

Page 4 of 4

Item 2
MINUTES of the meeting of the RESOURCES AND
PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE held at 10.00 am on 14
April 2022 at Council Chamber, Woodhatch Place, 11 Cockshot
Hill, Reigate, Surrey, RH2 8EF
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its
meeting on 13 July 2022.
Elected Members:
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

Nick Darby (Chairman)
Will Forster (Vice-Chair)
David Harmer (Vice-Chair)
Bob Hughes
Rebecca Jennings-Evans
Robert King
Steve McCormick
John Robini
Tony Samuels
Lesley Steeds
Hazel Watson
Jeremy Webster
(* = present at the meeting)

14/22 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS [Item 1]
None received.
15/22 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING AND RESPRECTIVE
MEETINGS: 17 SEPTEMBER 2021, 17 DECEMBER 2021 AND 20
JANUARY 2022 [Item 2]
The minutes of the Resources and Performance Select Committee held
on 17 September 2021, 17 December 2021 and 20 January 2022 were
formally agreed.
16/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 3]
None received.
17/22 QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS [Item 4]
None received.
18/22 PERFORMANCE MONITORING SESSION UPDATE [Item 5]
The notes of the Performance Monitoring session conducted informally
on 20 December 2021 were agreed.

Page 5

19/22 SUPPORTED INDEPENDENT LIVING – DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION
[Item 6]
Witnesses:
Natalie Bramhall, Cabinet Member for Property & Waste
Sinead Mooney, Cabinet Member for Adults & Health
Simon Crowther, Director of Land & Property
Elaine McKenna, Contracts Manager – Land & Property
Anthony Wybrow, Assistant Director – Project Delivery
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. A Vice Chairman asked if the proposal provided value for money
and if there were any cost concerns. The Cabinet Member for
Property & Waste said that the proposal provided good value for
money and budgets had been well managed by the teams
involved.
2. A Vice Chairman, in noting the reported reference to site
availability from 2018 and 2022, queried the inclusion of the
Byfleet Manor School site which had closed over 10 years ago.
The Cabinet Member for Property & Waste explained that the
school was demolished in 2018 resulting in the site being
available after the demolition date, the reason for the building
having remained standing for that period was unknown. The
Vice Chairman suggested the report wording be clearer in the
future.
3. The Chairman asked if final form specifications would be ready
in time for contracted works to commence. The Cabinet Member
for Property & Waste confirmed that the RIBA (Royal Institute of
British Architects) plan of works had been followed and there
had been close management between Adults Social Care,
occupational therapists and the Adults Social Care Board
(AwSC) with each design stage being signed off reducing the
risk of any unforeseen changes. The Chairman queried if
specifications and design stages were approved by users. The
Contracts Manager, Land & Property confirmed that users of
current services had been consulted with their feedback
incorporated into design plans.
4. The Chairman asked what the key risks to the project were. The
Contracts Manager, Land & Property stated that a risk
avoidance strategy had been implemented with each element of
the design being considered, including maintenance costs going
forward, sustainability and building regulations.
5. The Chairman asked if risks had been identified with local
planning advisors or the districts and boroughs for the three sites

Page 6

in question. The Cabinet Member for Property & Waste advised
that to address any potential issues before submission, all pre
application documents had been reviewed against national and
local planning by Surrey County Council’s Planning Consultant.
The Regulation 3 Team had issued preliminary reports and held
review meetings for each of the three sites, with comments
raised being worked into the designs. In preparation for formal
planning application submission in June 2022, officers for
Woking, Elmbridge and Reigate and Banstead Councils had
been asked to review delivery proposals and provide timely
feedback as part of the risk avoidance strategy.
6. The Chairman asked what reaction had there been so far and
were there applications that did not comply with existing local
plans. The Contract Manager, Land & Property confirmed that
discussions had taken place between the Regulation 3 Team
and district and borough planning officers. The local plan
referred mainly to Horley and most comments received thus far
referred to privacy, vernacular appearance, colour of bricks, and
landscaping and have been incorporated back into the design.
The Chairman asked if there had been any local opposition. The
Contract Manager, Land & Property confirmed that there had
been interest, not opposition.
7. A Member asked what the current and projected demand for
Supported Independent Living sites was. The Cabinet Member
for Property & Waste said that the published Accommodation
with Care and Support Strategy committed Surrey County
Council to providing 500 Supported Independent Living sites
across the county for working age adults with learning difficulties
and/ or autism. This current requirement would be met but the
need was expected to increase in the next three to five years to
a requirement of approximately 350 additional units with 22 per
cent sourced from council owned sites. Surrey County Council
Land & Property would continue to identify potential sites for
additional Supported Living accommodation.
8. A Vice Chairman asked if the budget was adequate enough to
allow the programme to be delivered to the timescale that Adult
Social Care expected. The Cabinet Member for Land & Property
confirmed that it was fully funded as part of the capital
programme under the Mid-Term Financial Strategy.
9. A Member asked if The Squirrels in Banstead remained empty.
The Cabinet Member for Property & Waste confirmed that
property was not empty, the residential break service and
residents with autism accommodation operated from the site.
10. A Member, in reference to page 51 of the report, asked for an
explanation of the term ‘local residents’. The Contract Manager,

Page 7

Land & Property said that needs would be addressed according
to the individual circumstances. The Cabinet Member for Adults
& Health explained that the Adult Social Care service were in the
early stages of working on a clear and concise allocations policy
to set fair principles around the allocation of these properties.
The needs of those originally from Surrey currently in
placements outside of the county but wishing to return would
also be included in this policy. It was suggested that the policy
would be brought back to the committee when finalised.
11. A Member said that the report noted that residents could expect
to pay lower fuel bills and asked how this would be achieved.
The Cabinet Member for Property & Waste confirmed that the
Batch 1 scheme buildings were designed to deliver energy
efficient buildings, resulting in lower fuel bills and addressing fuel
poverty.
12. A Vice Chairman asked if there were any restrictive covenants to

be considered. The Cabinet Member for Property & Waste
confirmed that a thorough appraisal of all land registry
documents and title deeds had been completed by Surrey
County Councils’ legal team and external legal consultants and
there were no restrictive covenants associated with Batch 1 .
13. The Chairman asked if further information could be provided
regarding Batch submission dates to Cabinet. The Assistant
Director, Project Delivery confirmed Batch 2 would be submitted
to Cabinet within the next six months and Batch 3 within the next
financial year 2022/2023. The Chairman noted the current
ambition to bring developments forward more quickly than in the
past.
14. The Chairman thanked officers for a useful update, requesting
the committee be notified of any issues or delays in good time
and requested that the committee be given the opportunity to
inspect sites at an appropriate and helpful stage.
Tony Samuels left the meeting at 10:41am
The Chairman paused the meeting 10:41am.
The Chairman resumed the meeting at 11:00am.

20/22 PEOPLE & CHANGE DEVELOPMENT PLAN [Item 7]
Witnesses:
Tim Oliver, Leader of the Council

Page 8

Sarah Kershaw, Chief of Staff & Interim Strategic Director for People &
Change
Emma Lucas, Head of Business Partnering & Employee Practice
Tom Holmwood, Recruitment Manager
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Leader of the Council introduced the item and confirmed the
appointment of Sarah Kershaw as Interim Strategic Director for
People and Change until the recruitment of a permanent
appointment to the post.
2. The Chairman asked how the recruitment and retention
challenges being experienced nationally were being addressed
at Surrey County Council, what were the challenges relating to
the Council specifically and what had been learnt from other
local authorities. The Interim Strategic Director for People &
Change said that building on the positive culture of the
organisation and communicating its successes were key and
added that a shift was taking place in some areas, with joint
roles being considered to help address current national
difficulties. Digital insight was important to provide good data
and a pilot was being tested by the Children’s Families, Lifelong
Learning & Culture Directorate (CFLLC) to create and develop a
framework to roll out to all directorates. The Recruitment
Manager added that the Council had worked to ensure effective
engagement with prospective employees and would continue to
develop a good working culture to attract applicants.
3. The Chairman asked what were the specific difficulties within
children’s services and care work areas. The Head of Business
Partnering & Employee Practice explained that evidence based,
targeted children’s workforce planning was taking place to
consider affordability, geographical placements, skills,
resourcing and diversity. This information would help directors
form a clear set of priorities during the next 12-18 months.
4. A Member asked if the Council had considered visiting schools
in addition to Further Education colleges to raise awareness
amongst younger students of the vast career opportunities
available within the Council. The Recruitment Manager said that
the Council’s partnership with the Youth Employment UK
Network ensured promotion of vacancies in an early- careers
setting to attract young people. The Talent & Organisational
Development Service had appointed an Early Careers Lead,
responsible for the implementation of strategies to attract
younger people. Developments were underway to ensure that
young people would be offered a role at the end of
apprenticeships or post graduate training programmes. Work

Page 9

was underway to produce videos for school use to promote
career opportunities within the council.
5. A Member noted the difficulties of appointing Section 151
Officers and asked if working partnerships with London Borough
Councils would provide recruitment opportunities in addition to
developing terms and conditions to attract candidates. The
Recruitment Manager said that benchmarking combined with the
market knowledge of employment agencies assigned to recruit
for senior roles on behalf of the Council were utilised and terms
and conditions remained competitive. The Interim Strategic
Director for People & Change said that work was underway to
ensure succession planning and career pathways were being
addressed around specialist roles to reduce the risk of
competition.
6. A Member asked if recruiting jointly with different authorities for
non-director posts had been considered, for example, Building
Control Officer posts. The Strategic Director for People &
Change confirmed that joint recruitment with partners including
the NHS had been taking place for some time in recognition of
the integration agenda and the necessity of working together to
solve the current difficulties in social care.
7. A Vice Chairman asked what benchmarking had taken place to
compare SCC’s pay and employment with other local authorities.
The Strategic Director for People & Change confirmed that
benchmarking was underway and completed annually.
8. A Vice Chairman asked what roles would be considered to
appoint under 30s. The Strategic Director for People & Change
said that any vacancy could be considered if the candidate had
the specific experience or qualifications required.
9. A Member asked if it was possible to provide more flexibility
around employment offers to attract applicants and provide
flexibility for those with caring responsibilities. The Strategic
Director for People & Change said that the organisation had
proven its ability to be flexible during the last two years and
continued to build on this as a long-term priority whilst ensuring
that services to residents were maintained.
10. A Vice Chairman asked what exit interview data showed as the
main reason for staff choosing to leave Surrey County Council.
The Recruitment Manager noted reasons including culture,
management, pay, development and training, and personal
circumstances adding that these were anecdotal reasons offered
in the absence of confirmed evidence. The Vice Chairman
asked for more data gathering work to be undertaken and
presented to the Select Committee or the People, Performance

Page 10

& Development Committee at an appropriate time. The
Chairman said that if exit interview data was not being collected,
it was important that this should happen going forward. A Vice
Chairman asked if managers received training on how to
conduct exit interviews. The Strategic Director for People &
Change said no specific training was available for managers but
guidance was provided. A Member asked who staff could
approach to express interest in a different role or more flexibility.
The Strategic Director for People & Change said managers
should be approached in the first instance
11. A Vice Chairman noted that exit interviews were not mandatory
but handovers were and asked if the two could be linked. The
Strategic Director for People & Change noted the suggestion.
12. A Vice Chairman asked if the figures reported would have been
worse without the £2.7 million Social Care Workforce Retention
Fund award. The Strategic Director for People & Change said
that the Select Committee would be provided with a response.
13. The Chairman summarised three key areas raised in the
discussion ‘why come?’, ‘why stay?’ and ‘why leave?’. The
Strategic Director for People & Change confirmed the data
gathered in these areas would be critical with intelligence
gathered and used to form an effective programme. The Head of
Business Partnering and Employee Practice said ‘itchy feet’
sessions were being piloted in Children’s Services to capture
and process data and learn from its effectiveness.
14. The Chairman asked if Employee Reference Groups (ERGs)
required development in their early stages to ensure that issues
were identified in good time. A Member asked what was the role
of ERG members and what did they discuss. The Strategic
Director for People & Change explained that the groups were
grown by staff members and open to all, with each group having
a Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) sponsor in each network.
Any change was driven by the group and their own action plans.
15. A Member said that in their view most professional disciplines
were in short supply and Surrey County Council should improve
strategies to ‘grow its own’, capitalising on its recently improved
reputation. The Apprenticeship Levy, most of which was
returned to the government was not a good use of funds. The
Strategic Director for People & Change agreed this was an area
for focus and work areas such as current offer, development and
placements would be investigated.
16. The Chairman asked if there were courses offered by Royal
Holloway, Kingston and Surrey Universities directly related to
opportunities within SCC and if so, could SCC contribute to

Page 11

these courses with graduate recruitment to follow. The Strategic
Director for People & Change said that this happened in some
directorates and added that a standardised approach to
supporting this in all Directorates would be positive.
17. A Member asked for further information at the next Select
Committee meeting regarding work being undertaken to identify
and improve the culture within SCC, how often recruitment by
managers was reviewed to ensure quality of work and
timescales from advertising to recruitment. The Strategic
Director for People & Change confirmed responses would be
provided at a later stage.
18. A Member, in referencing page 66 and un- manageable
workloads, asked how often workloads for Social Workers, in
particular, was reviewed and was there an effective complaints
procedure in place to mitigate risk. The Strategic Director for
People & Change said that this subject did not fall within the
People & Change remit adding that the usual procedures should
be followed with line managers.
19. A Member noted Surrey County Council’s difficulty in recruiting
staff whilst there was an pool of people with disabilities were
unemployed and noted that engagement was required in this
area. Diversity not only had to be valued but actively created
within the Surrey County Council by its directorates. The
Strategic Director for People & Change said that a reasonable
adjustments service had started and would focus on this area.
20. The Chairman asked what was being done to increase the
agreed 45 pence per mile fuel allowance to reimburse staff that
needed to use their cars for work, without the increase being
coming taxable. The Strategic Director for People & Change said
that advice was being sought regarding this.
Resolved:
The Resources and Performance Select Committee:
1. Will seek to agree a scope for a future briefing session to further
explore the issues raised in today’s meeting ahead of future
formal scrutiny.
2. Asks the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance and
Resources to lobby HMRC directly and via the County Council
Network (CCN) to review (enhance) the 45p mileage rate for
business travel as non-taxable.

Page 12

3. The Interim Strategic Director for People and Change to
consider as part of their update to the Committee in six months’
time:
a. Appropriate opportunities to use Members as advocates for
the Council as a prospective employer.
b. As part of succession planning, explore the possibility of
setting up a networked approach within the organisation and
with partners to allow officers to gain experience in other
industries and authorities (and vice-versa) to help develop
skills and experience in younger employees.
c. Provide an explanation of how the Council currently collects
leavers’ data across Directorates and explore how this could
be improved.
d. Explore how we can develop a systematic approach to
answering the questions of ‘why come to the organisation?’,
‘why stay?’ and ‘why leave?’ building on the itchy feet pilot in
Children’s Services.
e. That videos continue to be developed to help explain and
promote the work of the Council and its employment
opportunities to school age children in Surrey for use this
year.
f. Explore how recruitment can work with disability
organisations such as the Surrey Coalition of Disabled
People to better tailor its offer as an employer of choice for
people with disabilities.
21/22 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK
PROGRAMME [Item 8]
The Select Committee noted the Recommendation Tracker and the
Forward Work Programme.
22/22 DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING: 13 JULY 2022 [Item 9]
The Committee noted its next meeting would be held on 13 July 2022.

Meeting ended at: 12:53pm
_______________________________________________________

Chairman.

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 5
RESOURCES AND PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, 13 JULY 2022

CUSTOMER SERVICES UPDATE

Purpose of report: To provide an update on the Council’s Customer Services
operation following recommendations made by the Customer Experience Task
Group.
Introduction:
1.

A Customer Experience Task Group (the Task Group) was convened in early
2020 in response to discussion at the 18 October 2019 meeting of the
Resources and Performance Select Committee. The aim was to conduct a
‘deep dive’ into customers’ experiences when interacting with Council services,
in the context of the major programme of transformation that the Council is
undergoing. Its definition of customers focused on residents and other external
customers and their interaction with, chiefly, the Council’s Contact Centre

2.

The Task Group undertook a creative and practical approach towards scrutiny
that extended beyond formal committee meetings. This included in-person visits
and a survey. Relevant materials were also published on the Council’s website
to encourage public engagement.

3.

Due to the pandemic, the Customer Services team was required to prioritise
Covid-19 response activities to support vulnerable residents, such as operating
the Community Helpline and working with Public Health to set up the Local
Tracing Partnership for Surrey. The pandemic also disrupted activities planned
as part of the review.

4.

As a result, the work of the Task Group was concluded in January 2021. The
Group made several recommendations to support the ongoing development of
the Council’s Customer Services offer, which are set out in paragraph 29 of this
report. It was agreed an update would be given to a future meeting of the
Resources and Performance Select Committee following the recommendations
made by the Task Group, plus any new relevant information.

Customer Services Function and Purpose

Page 15

5.

The purpose of Customer Services is to provide a consistent, high quality,
resident focused experience, and to champion and support the delivery of this
throughout the organisation.

6.

Operationally, Customer Services is the first point of contact for most Council
services, including Adults & Children’s Social Care. Last year the service dealt
with approx. 250,000 calls, 90,000 emails, 16,000 Blue Badge applications,
18,000 Twitter mentions (via our Customer Services account) and 1,800
customer complaints; in addition to 7 million web visits and over 10,000 live web
chats. The average customer satisfaction level is 94 per cent.

7.

Customer Services is made up of the contact centre (split into social care and
all other services), Web & Digital Services, Customer Relations, Blue Badge,
and a training function.

8.

Customer Services also supports the Member enquiry process, with its
dedicated email address and telephone number for Councillors. The team helps
coordinate responses for Members who have received enquiries from residents
and will track enquiries to ensure responses are received within the target of 5
working days. Complex enquiries may, however, take longer.

9.

There is also a 24/7 service for road emergencies in Surrey. Between 9am to
5pm, calls will be answered by the contact centre. Outside of these hours
callers will be transferred to the emergency team, a service provided by the
Council’s Highways contractor. They will attend any emergencies and make the
area safe within two hours.

10. Alongside the day-to-day operation, there is also a cross organisation Customer
Experience Transformation Programme with the purpose of ‘making people’s
experience of dealing with the Council quicker, easier, and better; shaping a
new relationship with customers, managing their enquiries in a more efficient,
proactive and connected way, and increasing the use of digital self-serve
technologies’.
11. The aim of the programme is to provide customers with a more joined up, value
added experience and to improve the digital customer experience, so it is the
preferred choice for those able to self-serve where they can. This in turn frees
up capacity across the organisation to support residents in most need, and to
make sure no one is left behind.
12. The current budget of the Customer Services function is approx. £2.7 million.
The service successfully achieved efficiencies of £200,000 last year, which is
reflected in the current budget.
13. In terms of general performance, digital uptake across key high-volume
transactions is comparable and, in some cases, outperforms other large

Page 16

counties (ranging from 54 per cent to 95 per cent). Customer satisfaction and
first-time resolution rates remain consistently high and above target (average of
94 per cent and 82 per cent respectively). Call waiting times have increased at
points over the past two years due to the growing complexity of enquiry types
and surges in Covid cases. Current call waiting time has been reduced to
approximately 47 seconds.
Evolving the service to respond to the pandemic and changing needs
14. There have been significant developments to the service since the review was
undertaken and the work of the Task Group concluded. This includes evolving
the service offer to improve the experience for customers and taking on new
services to support wider organisational improvement and to meet changing
customer needs.
15. Customer Services played a major role in the Council’s response to the Covid19 Pandemic, setting up the Community Helpline in a matter of days so that
residents in need could connect with the support they needed for essential
tasks, such as shopping and medication collection. During the height of the
pandemic, the Helpline dealt with over 16,500 enquiries from residents needing
help. There were also 674,254 visits to the digital support available on the
Covid-19 pages of the Council’s website.
16. The Customer Services team also worked in partnership with Public Health to
enable Surrey to be an early adopter of local contact tracing. The Local Tracing
Partnership team was set up within Customer Services and its role was to
contact residents who had tested positive for Covid-19 to help reduce the
spread of the virus within Surrey. In the last year of operation, the team made
over 57,000 calls with an average 76 per cent success rate.
17. Alongside the pandemic response, the service also continued to support the
wider organisation by delivering new services, such as the Learners’ Single
Point of Access (L-SPA), taking initial contacts from families of children and
young people with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND). Over
15,000 calls have been taken so far, with 47 per cent dealt with at first point of
contact, freeing up valuable time for caseworkers to focus on providing support
children and young people.
18. Following the Government’s announcement to lift all remaining Covid-19
restrictions on 24 February 2022, Customer Services turned its attention to
using the capabilities it had developed operating the Community Helpline to
support residents through the growing cost of living crisis, as well as Ukrainian
refugees arriving in Surrey.

Page 17

19. On 6 April 2022, Customer Services launched a new telephone and digital
welfare information and advice service for residents who are struggling and
need financial, welfare or wellbeing support. This supports the Council’s guiding
principle of no one left behind and complements other support available e.g.,
through Citizen’s Advice.
20. This new service represents a big step towards realising the ambition to provide
a more holistic type of early advice and support for customers who may have a
number of different needs. Alongside providing the direct service, Customer
Services staff also received training in a range of welfare and benefits advice so
they can identify customers who might benefit from this service, even if they are
contacting the Council about another issue.
21. Working alongside colleagues from the Communications Team, insight from
customer contact through the Community Helpline is helping inform wider
advice, information, and communications to residents; for example, related to
the rising cost of living and fuel poverty.
New services and new ways of working to improve the customer experience
22. Since the Task Group concluded, the service has successfully delivered several
initiatives to help improve the digital customer experience, drive improved ways
of working and to engage with residents in a more proactive way. These
include:
a) Implementing live chat across the Council’s website, including for Adult
Social Care and the Online Financial Assessment Process. This means
customers can chat online with an agent, allowing those choosing to use the
digital space to get real time help that enables them to complete their task
online. There is an average of approx. 200 live chats a week.
b) Working jointly with the Digital Programme to successfully launch ‘chatbot’
prototypes for Schools Admissions and Death Registrations – developing
automated capabilities to help people navigate the information and services
on the Council’s website more easily. The School Admissions chatbot won a
national award and has a 95 per cent satisfaction rate, and the Death
Registration prototype offers customers the facility to amend, change or
cancel registration bookings online for the first time. A further two chatbot
prototypes are currently in development; one for Adult Learning and one for
Adult Social Care online financial assessments.
c) Optimising use of Gov.Notify to send automated text messages to customers
– a trial with the Adult Social Care Financial Assessment Team led to over
200 online financial assessments being completed as a direct result of text
reminders (a 30 per cent action rate) and saw a reduction in assessment

Page 18

completion times from 16 days to 5 days due to alerts being sent. Messages
were endorsed by external partners to ensure they were accessible and had
the right tone and content. The positive impact has meant staff have had to
make fewer follow up calls to customers to ask for information, meaning they
can process applications quicker. SMS notifications are now being rolled out
in other service areas where there is a need for proactive contact with
residents, such as Home to School Travel Assistance.
d) As part of wider website improvement work, and in response to customer
feedback, the landing page for adult social care services was redesigned,
making content more accessible and easier to navigate based on people’s
experiences. Helping people to find the information they need when they
need it.
e) Development of an accessibility machine – the Council is required to comply
with digital accessibility legislation, and so the service has developed an
innovative automated tool to help check accessibility compliance for
documents on the Council’s website.
f) Customer Services has embarked on an Equality, Diversity and Inclusion
(ED&I) awareness programme to ensure the needs of staff and residents
with protected characteristics are properly understood. A guide to inclusive
language, with supported training for Customer Services teams, has been
produced and is being shared with the wider organisation. The service
intends to develop its ED&I offer further and will review how it can be
included as part of its wider Customer Services training offer, which also
includes training and support for Members.
23. Digital development work is ongoing and is very much based on direct customer
feedback, along with wider research indicating customer preferences and needs
in terms of being able to access services, advice, and information.
24. Recognising that not everyone can or wishes to use digital services, Customer
services continues to offer a telephone service for people that need more
personalised support. There is also work ongoing with the Libraries Service to
provide an improved customer experience for residents visiting their local
libraries. By the two services working more closely together, the aim is to
promote early engagement and help within local communities and to provide a
more joined up and holistic customer experience, making the most of the faceto-face contacts happening in local libraries. This includes connecting people to
the digital support available.
25. In August 2021, Customer Services moved to a new location at Dakota House,
Brooklands, Weybridge and has since implemented a new agile operating
model, creating flexibility for staff whist also maintaining the training and service

Page 19

benefits of a modern, collaborative workspace. While Covid restrictions were in
place, the service’s ability to implement its agile model was limited. As from
June 2022, contact centre teams are spending 40 per cent of their working
week in the office. This is currently working well but will be kept under review to
ensure the best balance between delivering an efficient and effective service,
and flexibility for staff. The service does experience ongoing challenges i n
retaining skilled staff, so it is important to ensure the operating model provides
the best opportunities for recruitment and retention of staff within the service.
Awards and inspections
26. Customer Services was delighted to be selected as finalists for two prestigious
awards in 2021: The Institute of Customer Services (ICS) UK Satisfaction
Awards, and the Team of the Year category at the LGC Awards.
27. Following the recent Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services and
Skills (OFSTED) inspection of the Council’s Children’s Services, when talking
about the Request for Support team (the first point of contact for Children’s
Services within the contact centre), the report said: ‘The children’s single point
of access service responds effectively to most contacts and referrals, ensuring
that the vast majority of children are signposted for support and information, or
have their needs assessed more fully.’
Task Group Recommendations
28. The Task Group made a number of recommendations for Customer Services to
consider. Two related to how the Council conducts consultations, and it was
recognised that this did not fall under the remit of Customer Services.
Therefore, a response to these specific recommendations has not been
included within this report. However, it should be noted that the service is
working with the Resident Insight Team to ensure that the redesign of the
Resident’s Survey includes questions to help measure customer satisfaction
with the Council.
29. The following is an update on action taken by the service in response to the
Task Group recommendations:
29.1 Consolidate training on customer services offered to members:
Customer Services held briefings for members in June 2021 following the May
elections, along with supporting materials such as the Member casework guide
(available on the Member Portal) and is currently in the process of developing a
refreshed Customer Services training offer for Members and staff.

Page 20

29.2 Undertake deep dive benchmarking beyond the work of the Task
Group and existing benchmarking exercises: The Surrey County Council
(SCC) Customer Services team established a benchmarking and networking
group for the South-East region, which is now meeting regularly to share best
practice, hold deep dives on topics of interest, share learning and operational
benchmarking information. This group includes statistically similar councils,
such as Hertfordshire County Council, as well as additional local authorities,
from different parts of the UK, who have since expressed an interest in joining.
29.3 Maximise use of existing feedback mechanisms: Customer Services
continues to use customer feedback gathered through surveys, such as the
Service Tick verbatim post-telephone call survey, and complaints procedure to
inform service improvements, as well as share customer experiences to drive
positive changes to service delivery. The service is currently examining how it
can expand its work in this area and establish a more consistent way to
measure customer satisfaction across the organisation.
29.4 Ensure that digital avenues (e.g,. videos) are publicised and utilised
in Customer Services wherever possible: The service is continuing to
develop ways to promote its digital services to make them as easy as possible
to access and use. For example, a video was created to accompany the launch
of the welfare offer in order to reach more residents, and QR codes are being
used in libraries so people can directly access online services by scanning the
code on their mobile devices. Videos are also beginning to feature more
prominently on the Council’s website to explain procedures.
29.5 Ensure sufficient publicity and awareness amongst residents about
Customer Services pathways to services: In addition to the videos
referenced in paragraph 29.4, Customer Services is also working with
colleagues within the Communications team to promote new and existing
services and raise awareness amongst residents; for example, leaflets have
been produced publicising the welfare offer and these are being displayed in
key locations such as food banks, as well as being sent to targeted resident
groups / organisations. Targeted messaging is also delivered via social media
channels. For example, the Customer Services Twitter channel regularly
publicises online reporting options e.g., how to report a faulty streetlight.
29.6. Organise visits to the Contact Centre for all Members, as part of the
induction process after the May elections: Customer Services has hosted a
number of ‘open house’ visits for members and officers to observe how the
service works, what customers contact the Council about, and the experience
residents have when they telephone or use the website. These visits have been
well received and it is recommended that Members arrange to visit the service if
they haven’t already. Times and dates can be arranged to accommodate
Members.

Page 21

29.7 Scrutinise the Customer Experience during the Covid-19 pandemic:
The Council has commissioned a range of different research to better
understand the needs and experiences of residents and the impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic. This included a Community Impact Assessment, and
ethnographic research into the experiences of lesser heard groups / underrepresented people. The findings of such research have helped informed the
approach of Customer Services. For example, research into the experience of
people wanting to access adult social care services showed that live web chat
was a popular option, so the service rolled out this capability across the Adult
Social Care section of the Council’s website. It has also identified areas for
further improvement, such as some people commenting their experience of
contacting the Council doesn’t feel as customer centric as other organisations,
the experience can feel unproductive from a customer perspective, and that
contact options need to feel more inclusive.
Conclusions:
30. The Customer Services offer has evolved over the past year, both in response
to the pandemic but also the changing needs of Surrey residents. This has
resulted in the successful delivery of new services and ways of working, with
significant progress being made in the development of digital capabilities to
improve the customer experience.
31. Focus over the next 12 months includes:


Developing and evolving the welfare information & advice offer to
incorporate more services and respond to changing demand



Develop a roadmap for the future development of the website



Continue to work in partnership with key customer facing service areas
to deliver better customer experiences and create efficiencies e.g.,
Adults Social Care (ASC), Environment, Transport & Infrastructure
(ETI), Home to School Transport



Establish best practice around use of customer interaction technologies
e.g., live chat, chatbots, online forms, SMS notifications



Improve organisational capability to manage customer interactions and
relationships more effectively and create the conditions for more
partnership working opportunities



Design and deliver a refreshed Customer Services training offer,
including for Members

Page 22

Recommendations:
32. That the Resources and Performance Select Committee note the report and
actions taken in response to the Task Group recommendations.
Next steps:
33. To provide a further update to the Committee on future improvements and
developments, as and when requested.

Report contact
Susan Grizzelle – Head of Customer Services, Customer and Communities
Sarah Bogunovic – Head of Customer Strategy & Registration Services, Customer
and Communities
Contact details
Susan Grizzelle: 07940 560386 susan.grizzelle@surreycc.gov.uk
Sarah Bogunovic: 07977266706 sarah.bogunovic@surreycc.gov.uk
Sources/background papers
Customer Experience Task Group Report 21 January 2021
Customer Experience Transformation Programme
Customer Services Operational data

Page 23

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 6
RESCOURCES AND PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, 13 JULY 2022

Update on the roll out of digital infrastructure in Surrey

Purpose of report: To provide an update on the delivery of improvements to digital
infrastructure across Surrey, including changes introduced by Central Government to
the way in which public subsidy is administered to support digital connectivity. This
update report focuses on those interventions which will drive the greatest
improvement in connectivity, in what is a complex system for the delivery and
operation of broadband, 4G Long Term Evolution (Lte)/5G and other wireless
technologies.
The report sets out the activities and collaborative action by various organisations
across the public and private sector which are driving rapid improvements in digital
connectivity, to support the everyday activities of communities in Surrey and to
create the conditions for businesses to thrive.
Introduction:
1.

Currently more than 98 per cent of residents and businesses in Surrey can
access Superfast broadband speeds of 30 Megabits per second (Mbps) +.
Surrey County Council’s (SCC) Superfast Surrey Programme made a large
contribution to these improvements by providing upgrades to more than 84,000
premises between September 2012 and December 2020.

2.

The technology has since developed and, by 2025, Government’s ambition is
for 85 per cent of the UK to be able to access, faster, gigabit-capable
(1000Mbps+) speeds, increasing to ‘nationwide’ coverage by 2030. This
increase in speeds will predominantly be achieved through laying full fibre to
homes and business premises, although other technologies such as 4G Lte, 5G
and satellite will also play a part for the very hard to reach areas.

3.

The delivery of gigabit-capable infrastructure in Surrey is currently being driven
predominantly by the private sector, with SCC playing a role alongside other
partners in championing investment and helping to reduce the barriers to
infrastructure deployment.

4.

The new wave of investment in gigabit-speed connectivity differs from the
former superfast broadband programme in that the administration of public
subsidy and measures to support connectivity in harder to reach areas are

Page 25

being delivered directly by Building Digital UK (BDUK), rather than the funds
being by administered local authorities.
5.

This report provides an update on the activities of various organisations in what
is a very complex landscape and system for the delivery of improvements in
digital connectivity. Figure 1 provides an illustration of the various organisations
and interventions involved in the delivery of the next stage of gigabit speed
infrastructure delivery

Figure 1 – Delivering gigabit speeds

*Options are currently being explored by BDUK to connect those 1 per cent of
premises in the hardest to reach areas by alternative means such as satellite
technology/ 4G/5G etc.
Expected improvements in digital connectivity
6.

In recent years there has been a marked improvement in digital connectivity
across many parts of Surrey, particularly in the more urban areas. It seems that
Surrey is broadly on track to meet the Government’s target for 85 per cent of
UK premises to be able to access gigabit-capable broadband by 2025.
Connectivity in Surrey is now slightly above the national average of 68.9 per
cent, with 73.5 per cent of premises in Surrey being able to access gigabit
speeds. This is a stark contrast to the position in November 2020 when only 16
per cent of premises were able to access gigabit speeds.

7.

This dramatic increase in speeds has mainly been achieved through investment
by the private sector and is predominately due to the recent upgrades by Virgin
Media O2. Improvements by Openreach and smaller network operators (AltNets) have also contributed to this considerable shift in position.

Page 26

8.

Investment is also underway by Mobile Network Operators to increase access
to 5G. Government set a target for “the majority of the population” to have
access to 5G signal by 2027 and extensive investment by EE has meant that
more of than 50 per cent of the population can already access EE’s 5G
network.

9.

Whilst the data shows marked improvements in digital connectivity within
Surrey over the last two years, there is still more to do to ensure that all
residents and businesses across Surrey can benefit from these improvements.

10. Reflecting SCC’s ambition to be on the front foot in promoting investment in
digital infrastructure within the county, SCC has developed a Digital
Infrastructure 2030 Vision Statement, as set out below.
“By 2030, the residents and economy of Surrey will benefit from a digital
infrastructure and network with widespread provision of gigabit speeds and 5G
wireless technologies. Excellent digital connectivity will act as an enabler to
unlock the potential of new technologies for our communities, support
sustainable growth, facilitate innovation and enable businesses to thrive”.

Private Sector – Future Investment Plans
11. Government’s expectation is that commercial network suppliers such as
Openreach, Virgin Media O2 and other smaller infrastructure providers will
deliver up to 85 per cent of the nationwide fixed network gigabit coverage over
the next eight years.
12. Openreach’s network, which serves nearly 97 per cent of Surrey premises is now
upgrading its network to a full fibre solution to enable gigabit speeds. Its current
plans include the upgrade of at least 75 per cent of homes and businesses on 46
exchanges in Surrey by 2026. Information about the specific sites to be upgraded
can be found on the Openreach website - Where and when we're building
Ultrafast Full Fibre broadband | Openreach
13. Virgin Media O2 has completed internal network reconfiguration works over the
last two years to enable 60 per cent of premises in Surrey to access gigabitcapable speeds. Further improvements are now underway to future-proof the
Virgin Media network, with the whole network being upgraded to full fibre by
2028.
14. Smaller network operators (Alt-Nets) are now also deploying gigabit-capable
broadband infrastructure to Surrey residents. These Alt-Nets, such as Box
Broadband, Broadband for Surrey Hills (B4SH), Netomnia, F&W (Hey

Page 27

Broadband), Swish Fibre, Toob and Trooli and others primarily target market
towns such as Bagshot, Camberley, Cranleigh, Dorking, Farnham and
Godalming. The SCC website includes a list of all locations that have been
announced by commercial operators.
15. The substantial investment by private operators is welcomed news, but for the
most part, all of these upgrades and plans involve installing infrastructure on,
under and over the Highway. Whilst some activities will use existing
infrastructure such as ducts and will be almost seamless, other works such as
installing new poles, chambers and cabinets or clearing/replacing that require
associated traffic management will create more disruption.
16. To mitigate impacts, SCC Highways and Streetworks teams hold regular joint
meetings with communication providers to highlight SCC’s expectations of their
work, identify possible conflicts with other works taking place and support clear
communication with residents on any impact whilst the works are underway.
17. The Government has made substantial changes to planning legislation over the
past few years, which impacts the installation of digital infrastructure. Some
infrastructure can now be installed under Permitted Development Rights. Where
planning permission is required, such as for the installation of large masks, this
is considered by the local planning authority (i.e., the borough and district
authorities).
18. As Openreach deploys more and more full fibre infrastructure into Surrey, it is
its existing copper-based phone service is gradually being shut down and this
will be completed by the end of 2025. This impacts all telephones that are
plugged directly into a wall socket (i.e., not via a router), security alarms, lift
alarms, card readers and medical pendants. Further information about these
changes can be found on the British Telecom (BT) website All-IP products and
services (btwholesale.com).
Government Intervention
19. It is expected that commercial operators will provide gigabit-capable speed
connectivity to approximately 85 per cent of premises within the UK. However,
for those areas which are not considered to be commercially viable, publicsector intervention and subsidy may be required. The way in which this support
is being administered differs from the former Superfast Broadband Programme.
20. To connect premises that are not included in any commercial plans, Building
Digital UK (BDUK), a specialist delivery Executive Agency of the Department for
Digital, Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS), has developed a series of demandside and supplier-side interventions that form part of the £5 Billion Project
Gigabit Programme.

Page 28

21. As part of the Project Gigabit Programme, BDUK are leading the delivery of
procurement processes to target investment at premises that are not included in
commercial rollout plans. In August 2021, the Government announced that
Surrey would benefit from significant investment estimated at between £101
million and £171 million to connect approximately 100,000 premises. The exact
number, location and cost of these premises is still being determined. The latest
information from BDUK indicates that the improvements will commence
following the award of the procurement contract in December 2023.
22. An Open Market Review and Public Review has been completed to determine
where commercial operators are intending to deploy gigabit capable
infrastructure. Those areas that are not included in the commercial deployment
plans will be the target for investment through the Project Gigabit Programme.
More information on the initial findings from the Open Market Review and Public
Review can be found in Annex 1.
23. One of the other interventions included within the Project Gigabit Programme is
the Project Gigabit Voucher Scheme. SCC has played an active role in helping
to promote the scheme and more than 3,700 residents and businesses across
Surrey have already benefitted from the scheme, with a total of £6.7 million
having been made available towards the cost of delivering gigabit infrastructure
in their communities. However, the Gigabit Voucher Scheme in Surrey will be
completely paused by BDUK on 15 July 2022 for four to nine months while the
Project Gigabit procurement activity is underway.
Enterprise M3 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Fibre Spine
24. Enterprise M3 (EM3) LEP are proposing to build a 94km fibre spine in an S
Shape between Basingstoke and Guildford that will connect several locations in
Surrey and Hampshire. The fibre spine will complement measures by the
private sector and will provide capacity for commercial operators to connect
their networks to homes and businesses along the route.
25. Formal market engagement is currently underway to inform the final
specification and delivery approach for the scheme, with the intention of taking
forward the delivery once a suitable delivery mechanism has been agreed.
SCC role
26. Over the last two years, the commercial providers have been the main driver of
the considerable improvements in digital connectivity. BDUK investment will
increasingly be deployed alongside the private investment to support those
areas which may otherwise be missed from the commercial deployment plans.

Page 29

In comparison, SCC has a relatively limited role and does not have the financial
resource to provide public subsidy in the way that BDUK can through its
£5billion Project Gigabit Programme.
27. SCC does, however, have an active role to play as an enabler, to support and
promote Surrey for investment by the private sector and BDUK. Specifically,
SCC is currently looking at ways in which SCC owned assets can be used to
support 5G and other wireless technologies, through installing devices on
existing infrastructure such as streetlights. In doing so, SCC will not only
increase the pace and ease of 5G roll out, but it may also create a modest
source of income generation for the authority.
28. Project feasibility work is now underway to explore the use of local authority
assets further, including the development of appropriate pricing structures and
legal agreements. The scope of the project will be considered for approval by
the Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure in September 2022.
29. In a similar vein, SCC is also exploring how to maximise the benefits from the
re-procurement of the SCC BT Unicorn services contract. The BT Unicorn
contract provides critical Wide Area Network (WAN) and Wi-Fi services to
Council sites, expires in August 2024. The new contract will see the investment
of £8.23 million to provide gigabit capable connectivity to all Council sites.
30. Through the social value contribution by the selected supplier there is an
opportunity to connect more premises to gigabit capable infrastructure. The
provision of full fibre infrastructure to SCC sites will enable, a further six
residential or business premises (on average) to be connected in the vicinity of
the SCC site. This is expected to result in around 1,020 additional connections
being achieved. In addition, free fibre connection and free broadband
connectivity will be provided for up to 21 SCC managed care homes for a 3year term.
Conclusion - Impact for residents and businesses
31. Given the considerable improvements to digital infrastructure across Surrey,
Surrey residents and businesses are starting to benefit from access to gigabit
speeds. These improvements will continue as large and small suppliers alike
continue to future proof their network and invest considerable sums in gigabit
capable infrastructure.
32. The improvements will not only support existing technological capabilities, such
as telecommuting, but will enable innovation across communities and
businesses. Sectors within the economy, such as the gaming cluster and cyber
cluster will benefit from faster download and upload speeds and new
technologies will emerge and be adopted across Surrey as a result of the

Page 30

improved infrastructure. In doing so, this will contribute to a growing Surrey
economy and improve the quality of life for communities.
Recommendations:
33. The Select Committee are asked to:


Note the update report on the delivery of digital infrastructure

Next steps:
A report will be presented to the Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure in
September 2022 to seek approval for the SCC project to make available SCC’s
assets to support the roll out 5G and other wireless technologies.
Written briefing notes will be produced to provide members with updates on the roll
out of digital infrastructure across the County, as and when appropriate. The SCC
website is also kept up to date with information about digital infrastructure coverage
across Surrey.

Report contacts
Katie Brennan, Digital Infrastructure Senior Project Manager
Rhiannon Mort, Head of Economic Infrastructure, Economy and Growth
Contact details
Katie.Brennan@surreycc.gov.uk
Rhiannon.Mort@surrey.gov.uk
Sources/background papers
Annex 1 – Open Market Review and Public Review

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex 1

Annex 1 – Open Market Review and Public Review
As part of Project Gigabit Programme, Building Digital UK (BDUK) is undertaking a
phased delivery of supplier led procurements to more than 25 areas across the country
to target premises that are not included in commercial gigabit-capable rollout plans.
Unlike the Superfast Surrey Programme, BDUK are responsible for the whole
procurement process, including defining the boundaries and premises included within
each procurement Lot.
In order to identify which premises may not be in commercial plans, the Government
has undertaken an Open Market Review and a Public Review for each procurement
Lot in the past year to understand the commercial supplier’s gigabit rollout plans for
the next three years.
The vast majority of Surrey’s geography is included within Lot 22 (Surrey) and the
Public Review identified a total of 90,000 Surrey premises that are potentially eligible
for public subsidy through the initial procurement. A further 12,500 Surrey premises
are included in either Lot 1 (West Sussex), Lot 26 (Buckinghamshire, Hertfordshire
and East of Berkshire), Lot 27 (Hampshire) or Lot 29 (Kent) and of these
approximately 2,000 are also not included in any commercial plans.
However, there are nearly 12,000 Surrey premises (mostly located in Tandridge and
Epsom & Ewell) that are not included in any announced Lot. As part of the Lot 22
(Surrey) Public Review feedback that Surrey County Council (SCC) submitted to
BDUK at the end of April 2022, SCC requested that these premises be moved into
Lot 22 (Surrey) so that they too can be considered for public subsidy and not left
behind. SCC is awaiting a response.
A map was included as part of Public Review published documentation for each Lot.
The map showing the majority of Surrey (Lot 22) is included below and maps
showing the other Lots listed above can be made available on request.
The public subsidy designations are colour-coded as follows:


White - indicates premises with no gigabit network infrastructure and none is
likely to be developed within three years by commercial providers. These
premises will be considered for inclusion in any initial procurement.



Grey and Black - indicates premises with one or more qualifying gigabit
infrastructures from different suppliers being available or will be deployed in
the coming three years. These premises are not eligible for public subsidy.



Blue – Under Review – indicates premises where suppliers have reported
planned commercial broadband coverage, but where those plans have been
judged through the Open Market Review as potentially being at risk of not
being completed. These premises won't be included in any initial procurement
but will be subject to on-going monitoring.

Page 33

Annex 1
Lot 22 - Surrey

Please note, Government is currently reviewing the feedback it received in
response to the Public Reviews and the designations shown above will
change.

Page 34

Item 7
RESOURCES AND PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE

13 July 2022

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (FWP) AND
RECOMMENDATION TRACKER (RT)
Purpose of report: To review and agree the Forward Work Programme (FWP). To
track recommendations and requests made by the Select Committee.
Introduction:
1. The Forward Work Programme (FWP) and Recommendation Tracker (RT)
update is a standing item on the agenda of the Select Committee.
2. The FWP covers the expected activity in 2021/22 (Annex A).
3. The RT tracks recommendations made by the Committee (Annex B).
4. The FWP includes regular items, task and reference groups updates and the
additional items the Select Committee would like to engage with in coming
months. This approach should enable the Select Committee to consider planning
and resourcing for its scrutiny and overview work across the year whilst retaining
enough flexibility to consider essential additional items as needed from time to
time. There should be no more than two task groups taking place concurrently.
Recommendations:
5. The Select Committee is recommended:
a) To review and agree the Forward Work Programme (Annex A);
b) To make any appropriate suggestions for possible amendments including
programming of in-depth session and other agenda items; and
c) To monitor the update provided in Recommendation Tracker (Annex B).
Next Steps:
The Select Committee reviews its Forward Work Programme and Recommendation
Tracker at each of its meetings.
Kunwar Khan
Scrutiny Officer | Democratic Services | Law and Governance
Surrey County Council | Kunwar.Khan@surreycc.gov.uk

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex A .

Resources and Performance Select Committee
Forward Work Programme 2021 – 2022
Resources and Performance Select Committee | Chairman: Cllr Nick Darby | Scrutiny Officer: Kunwar Khan
Democratic Services Assistant: Laila Laird
Date of Meeting

Page 37

7 October 2022

Type of
Scrutiny
Scrutiny

Issue for
Scrutiny

Purpose

Outcome

People &
Change
Development
Update (HR&OD)

For the Select Committee
to be kept abreast of
HR&OD developments
since the last report, and
any new developments.

To receive HR update
report building on the
queries raised by R&PSC
previously following
informal sessions, and any
new issues.

Relevant
Organisational
Priority
Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit
Empowering
communities

Cabinet
Member/Lead
Officer
Tim Oliver, Leader
of the Council
Sarah Kershaw,
Chief of Staff to
Chief Executive &
Interim Strategic
Director of People
& Change
Leigh Whitehouse,
Deputy Chief
Executive and
Executive Director
for Resources

Annex A
Policy
Development
and Review

Agile Office
Update Report

Scrutiny

For the Select Committee
to receive an Agile Office
update report, review
development and provide
feedback.

To provide oversight and
monitoring.

Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit
Empowering
communities

Natalie Bramhall,
Cabinet Member
for Property and
Waste
Leigh Whitehouse,
Deputy Chief
Executive and
Executive Director
for Resources
Simon Crowther,
Director of Land
and Property

Page 38

Friday
9 December
2022

Scrutiny

Data Insights
Transformation
Programme

To receive an update
about Data Insights
Transformation
Programme.

To assure the Select
Committee of informed
decision-making;
assurance that there is a
robust business
intelligence function in
place that is underpinned
with up to date and
relevant information.

Empowering
communities

Becky Rush,
Cabinet Member
for Finance and
Resources
Rachel Crossley,
Joint Executive
Director for Public
Service Reform
Angela Lawrence,
Head of Data

Annex A
Scrutiny

2023/24 Draft
Budget report
with Treasury
Management
Strategy

For the Select Committee
to scrutinise the draft
2022/23 budget, MediumTerm Financial Strategy
and other relevant
information, before it is
finalised in January 2022.

To ensure the 2023/24
budget deliver good value.

Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit

Becky Rush,
Cabinet Member
for Finance and
Resources
Leigh Whitehouse,
Deputy Chief
Executive and
Executive Director
for Resources
Anna
D’Alessandro,
Director, Corporate
Finance and
Commercial

Page 39

Nicola O’Connor,
Strategic Finance
Business Partner
Rachel Wigley,
Director - Finance,
Insights and
Performance
TBC

Scrutiny

Procurement
Modernisation
Project

On a suggestion from the
Cabinet Member for
Finance and Resources,
to bring the Procurement
Modernisation Project to
the Select Committee, and
in order to inform
Members on a number of
major procurement
contracts.

For the Select Committee
to gain greater
understanding and
assurance on procurement
modernisation.

Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit
Empowering
communities

Becky Rush,
Cabinet Member
for Finance and
Resources
Darron Cox,
Director Procurement

Annex A
TBC
(Possibly March
2023)

TBC

Page 40

TBC

Scrutiny

Scrutiny

Scrutiny

IT & Digital
(IT&D) Update

To review the Information
Technology and Digital
(IT&D) Service and any
updates, following a
previous overview of the
service report provided at
the 18 March 2021 Select
Committee meeting.

For the Select Committee
to receive greater
understanding and
assurance on the work of
the IT&D Service.

Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit

Equality,
Diversity and
Inclusion (EDI)
Review – Update

For the Select Committee
to review the work
undertaken since previous
scrutiny of the draft plan
by the Select Committee
in January 2021, and then
the Cabinet decision to
approve the plan in
February 2021.

To receive an update and
Tackling health
monitor progress since this inequality
was last reported to the
committee.
Empowering
communities

Tim Oliver, Leader
of the Council

Digital Exclusion
Report

To receive a report about
digital exclusion as
discussed on 17
September 2021 Select
Committee meeting.

To enable the Select
Committee to monitor and
seek reassurance that all
residents feel supported
by the Council. Nobody,
particularly elderly and
vulnerable are left behind
due to shift towards and
emphasis on
digital/technology and the
use of chatbots in some
cases.

Mark Nuti, Cabinet
Member for
Communities

Empowering
communities

Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit
Empowering
communities

Becky Rush,
Cabinet Member
for Finance and
Resources
Matt Scott, Chief
Information Officer

Sarah Kershaw,
Chief of Staff to
Chief Executive &
Interim Strategic
Director of People
& Change

Marie Snelling,
Executive Director
of Customer and
Communities

Annex A
TBC

Scrutiny

DB&I Lessons
Learnt

For the Select Committee
to receive a wider lessons
learnt for major projects
following DB&I (SAP)
project.

For the Select Committee
to review and the Council
to gain greater
understanding and lessons
learnt from the DB&I
(SAP) project.

Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit

Becky Rush,
Cabinet Member
for Finance and
Resources
Leigh Whitehouse,
Deputy Chief
Executive and
Executive Director
for Resources

Task and Finish Groups; Member Reference Groups
Timescale

Page 41

On-going, yearly
budget monitoring

Type of
Scrutiny
Budget scrutiny

Budget Task
Group
(Led by
Resources and
Performance
Select Committee
with
representation
from all Select
Committees.)

11 July 2022
8 September 2022
1 December 2022

Tuesday
21 June 2022

Issue for
Scrutiny

Scrutiny

Strategic and
Capital
Investments

Purpose

To enable in-depth
monitoring of budget and
scrutiny of the 2022/23
budget, cutting across the
remits of all four Select
Committees.

To receive an update on
the Council’s Strategic
and Capital Investment
portfolio.

Outcome

Relevant
Organisational
Priority
To ensure that the
Growing a
2022/23 budget offers
sustainable
good value for money in all economy so
the Council’s service
everyone can
areas, enabling the best
benefit
outcomes for residents.

Membership

To ensure scrutiny
oversight, and to
consider/receive
assurances about
transparency and best
value for money.

Becky Rush,
Cabinet Member
for Finance and
Resources

Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit

Membership:
 Nick Darby
(Chairman)
 Ayesha Azad
 Liz Bowes
 Will Forster
 John O’Reilly
 Lance Spencer
 Buddhi
Weerasinghe
 Robert Evans
 Jeremy
Webster

Annex A

TBC

Scrutiny

DB&I Lessons
Learnt
(Informal private
sessions on 29
June, 5 July 2022
and beyond
before a report is
presented to the
Select
Committee)

For the Select Committee
to receive a report on
DB&I lessons learnt.

For the Select Committee
to gain greater
understanding around the
lessons learnt.

Empowering
communities

Leigh Whitehouse,
Deputy Chief
Executive and
Executive Director
of Resources

Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit

Becky Rush,
Cabinet Member
for Finance and
Resources
Leigh Whitehouse,
Deputy Chief
Executive and
Executive Director
for Resources

Page 42

To be received in writing and/or informal briefing sessions
Wednesday
9 March 2022

TBC

Equality,
Diversity and
Inclusion
(ED&I)

Treasury
Management
Strategy
(as part of
budget
scrutiny)

For the Select
Committee to
receive an
update on the
implementation
and progress of
the Council’s
ED&I plan.

For the Select Committee to review the progress and
offer any input and feedback.

For the Select
Committee to
receive
information on
the Treasury
Management
Strategy (TMS)
as part of the

For the Select Committee to offer any input or
recommendations on the TMS.

Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit

Sarah Kershaw,
Chief of Staff to
Chief Executive &
Interim Strategic
Director of People
& Change

Empowering
communities
Growing a
sustainable
economy so
everyone can
benefit

Nicola O’Connor,
Strategic Finance
Business Partner

Annex A
2022/23 budget
process.

Standing Items



Forward Work Programme (FWP) and Recommendations Tracker (RT): Review of the Select Committee’s forward work programme, and
monitoring of the Select Committee recommendations and actions.
Notes of Performance Monitoring Session: A record of the most recent informal Performance Monitoring session (conducted every 2-4 months)

Page 43

This page is intentionally left blank

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their rec ommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY

No Progress Reported

Action In Progress

Action Completed

RECOMMENDATIONS
Date
18
Oct
2019

Page 45

14
April
2022

Item

Recommendation

Quarterly Performance
Report (Q1 2019/20)

RPSC1/19: The Select Committee is to
receive on an annual basis information
on how Surrey County Council’s
performance compares with other
councils.

People & Change
Development Update
[Item 10]

RPSC13/22: The Interim Strategic
Director for People and Change to
consider as part of their update to the
Committee in six months’ time:


Appropriate opportunities to use
Members as advocates for the
Council as a prospective employer.



As part of succession planning,
explore the possibility of setting up
a networked approach within the
organisation and with partners to
allow officers to gain experience in
other industries and authorities (and
vice-versa) to help develop skills

Responsible
Member/ Officer
Rachel Wigley,
Director – Finance,
Insights &
Performance
Becky Rush,
Cabinet Member for
Finance &
Resources
Sarah Kershaw,
Strategic Director for
People & Change

Deadline

October
2022

Progress
Recommendation response
check
accepted/ implemented
June 2022 As of September 2021, a
benchmarking report is being
prepared and will be shared with the
Select Committee once it has been
signed off.
June 2022 Recommendations have been sent to
the Strategic Director for People &
Change for information and
response. A further report will be
provided to the Select Committee

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their rec ommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

No Progress Reported

Item

Recommendation
and experience in younger
employees.

Page 46



RPSC14/22: Provide an explanation
of how the Council currently collects
leavers’ data across Directorates
and explore how this could be
improved.



Explore how we can develop a
systematic approach to answering
the questions of ‘why come to the
organisation?’, ‘why stay?’ and ‘why
leave?’ building on the itchy feet
pilot in Children’s Services.



That videos continue to be
developed to help explain and
promote the work of the Council and
its employment opportunities to
school age children in Surrey for
use this year.



Explore how recruitment can work
with disability organisations such as

Action In Progress

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Action Completed

Deadline

Progress
check

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their rec ommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY
Date

No Progress Reported

Item

Recommendation
the Surrey Coalition of Disabled
People to better tailor its offer as an
employer of choice for people with
disabilities.
That the Committee agrees a scope
for a future briefing session to
further explore the issues raised in
today’s meeting ahead of future
formal scrutiny.



The Deputy Leader and Cabinet
Member for Finance and Resources
to lobby HMRC directly and via the
County Council Network (CCN) to
review (enhance) the 45p mileage
rate for business travel as nontaxable

Page 47



Action In Progress

Responsible
Member/ Officer

Action Completed

Deadline

Progress
check

Recommendation response
accepted/ implemented

RESOURCES & PERFORMANCE SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
April 2022

Annex B

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their rec ommendations
or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate
that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting.

KEY

No Progress Reported

Action In Progress

Action Completed

ACTIONS
Date
14
April
2022

Item
People & Change
Development Update
[Item 10]

Action
RPSC15/22: Officers to provide
information relating to the effect of the
£2.7 million Social Care Workforce
Retention Fund on employee data.

Page 48

Responsible
Member/ Officer
Becky Rush,
Cabinet Member for
Finance &
Resources
Sarah Kershaw,
Strategic Director for
People & Change

Deadline

Progress
check

Action response.
accepted/ implemented
Recommendations have been sent to
the Strategic Director for People &
Change for action and response.

